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NATURE OF BUSINESS

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Matzikama Local Municipality performs the functions as set out in the Constitution (Act no 105 of 1996).

LEGAL FORM

South African Category B Municipality (Local Municipality) as defined by the Municipal Structures Act (Act no 117 of 1998).

JURISDICTION

The Matzikama Local Municipality includes the following areas:

Vredendal Lutzville Bitterfontein Rietpoort
Vanrhynsdorp Ebenhaezer Nuwerus Kliprand
Klawer Strandfontein Stofkraal

Koekenaap Doringbaai Molsvlei
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Ward 1 Tieties Johan Muller

Ward 2 Amelia Fransina Kristina Job
Ward 3 Sampi Jackes Tshabalala
Ward 4 Cecil Andrew le Fleur

Ward 5 Stephanus Petrus Cornelissen
Ward 6 Jan Koopman

Ward 7 Christo Boks

Ward 8 Albertus Johannes Pool
Proportional Hermanus Johannes van der Hoven
Proportional Andreas Sindyamba
Proportional Davine Angela Witbooi
Proportional Sinazo Tshali

Proportional Christoffel van der Westruis
Proportional Monica Bottom

Proportional Chris White

MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Cllr Hermanus Johannes van der Hoven
Clir Amelia Fransina Kristina Job
ClIr Stephanus Petrus Cornelissen

Clir Christo Boks
Clir Chris White
MUNICIPAL MANAGER

Lionel Phillips (Acting)

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

ER Alfred

AUDIT COMMITTEE

A Wells
M Smit
F Rootman

REGISTERED OFFICE

37 Church Street
Vredendal
8160
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POSTAL ADDRESS

PO Box 98
VREDENDAL
8160
AUDITORS

Office of the Auditor General (WC)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Bank Limited

ATTORNEYS

Swanepoel en Swanepoel
Koos Coetzee
Fairbridges Wertheim Becker Inc

RELEVANT LEGISLATION

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

GENERAL INFORMATION

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act 75 of 1997)

Collective Agreements

Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act, 1993 (Act 130 of 1993)

Division of Revenue Act

Electricity Act, 1987 (Act 41 of 1987)

Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act 55 of 1998)
Employment Services, 2014 (Act 4 of 2014)

Housing Act, 1997 (Act 107 of 1997)

Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act 66 of 1995)

Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations

Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 of 2003)
Municipal Planning and Performance Management Regulations
Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act 6 of 2004)

Municipal Regulations on a Standard Chart of Accounts, 2014
Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act 117 of 1998) as amended
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000) as amended
National Environmental Management Act, 2008 (Act 62 of 2008)
National Minimum Wage Act 9 of 2018

Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act 85 of 1993)
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act 5 of 2000)
Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act, 1998 (Act 20 of 1998)

SALGBC Leave Regulations

Skills Development Levies Act, 1999 (Act 9 of 1999)
Supply Chain Management Regulations, 2005

The Income Tax Act

Unemployment Insurance Act, 1966 (Act 30 of 1966)
Unemployment Insurance Contributions Act 4 of 2002

Value Added Tax Act

Water Services Act, 1997 (Act 108 of 1997)
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACCOUNTING OFFICER'S RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

I am responsible for the preparation of these annual financial statements year ended 30 June 2023, which are set out on pages 1 to 89 in terms of
Section 126 (1) of the Municipal Finance Management Act and which | have signed on behalf of the Municipality.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GRAP, including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB).

I acknowledge that | am ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control and that the system of internal control provides
reasonable assurance that the financial records can be relied on.

I have reviewed the Municipality’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2024 and | am satisfied that the Municipality can continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the Municipality’s financial statements.
| certify, that the remuneration of Councillors and in-kind benefits are within the upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the

Constftution, read with the Remuneration of Public Officer Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government's determination in
accofdance with this Act.

AN Ar2z

Liov.illi sfakting) Date
Munigipal Maha
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AT 30 JUNE 2023

2023 2022
R R
Notes (Actual) (Restated)

ASSETS
Current Assets 75 464 087 69 392 273
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 18 509 123 20338 468
Receivables from Exchange Transactions 3 21303171 20 541 207
Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions 4 10573122 8989 142
Taxes 5 22 500 804 16 900 340
Operating Lease Assets 6 - 2824
Current Portion of Long-term Receivables 7 1691015 1489 147
Inventory 8 886 852 1131146
Non-Current Assets 920947 143 898 178 697
Operating Lease Assets 6 56 676 -
Long-term Receivables 7 1635240 1763 190
Investment Property 9 96 087 100 93 863 182
Property, Plant and Equipment 10 823 055 477 802 337 045
Intangible Assets 11 112 650 215280
Total Assets 996 411 230 967 570 970
Current Liabilities 170 109 950 194 694 916
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities 12 33762418 29179 549
Payables from Exchange Transactions 13 94 669 022 132 834 432
Unspent Conditional Government Grants 14 23597 614 14 431612
Unspent Public Contributions 15 612 415 612 415
Current Employee Benefits 16 17 468 481 17 636 909
Non-Current Liabilities 180 639 097 109 730 882
Long-term Liabilities 12 80420 897 11384 747
Employee Benefits 17 38 484 000 41 909 000
Non-Current Provisions 18 61734200 56 437 135
Total Liabilities 350 749 046 304 425 798
NET ASSETS 645 662 184 663 145 172
COMMUNITY WEALTH
Accumulated Surplus 645 662 184 663 145 172

645 662 184 663 145 172
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

REVENUE

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Taxation Revenue
Property Rates
Transfer Revenue - Operating

Government Grants and Subsidies - Operating
Public Contributions and Donations - Operating

Transfer Revenue - Capital

Government Grants and Subsidies - Capital
Public Contributions and Donations - Capital
Contributed Assets

Other Revenue

Availability Charges

Fines, Penalties and Forfeits
Actuarial Gains

Fair Value Adjustment Gains
Other Income (Non-Exchange)

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Operating Activities

Service Charges

Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Interest Earned - external investments
Interest Earned - outstanding debtors
Licences and Permits

Agency Services

Other Income (Exchange)

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

Employee Related Costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Debt Impairment

Depreciation and Amortisation
Impairments

Finance Charges

Bulk Purchases

Contracted Services

Transfers and Grants

Other Expenditure

Actuarial Losses

Loss on disposal of Non-Monetary Assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

NET DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

Notes

19

20
21

20
21
22

23
24
25
26
27

28
29
30

31
32
33

34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
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2023 2022
R R
(Actual) (Restated)

212 557 980 224 044 115
49 549 692 50995 627
49 549 692 50995 627
90 122 944 85 088 106
90 122 944 84 940 858
- 147 248
41 501 819 70 697 092
39332475 67 761 127
- 981 652
2169344 1954313
31383525 17 263 290
4144 322 4227 546
10365 793 9478919
8457 079 57 555
5234918 2441 000
3181413 1058 270
229910 215 219374 135
229910 215 219374 135
209 104 591 206 220 484
1983766 1756 906
1418 787 793 900
7592 133 -
996 352 971 615
4155961 4149 868
4 658 626 5481 362
442 468 196 443 418 250
172 433 024 170963 034
7 561 198 7 353716
44 525 563 31512569
23714 696 23 360 864
2259693 8415731
28 166 446 17 838 550
129 262 183 139 429 958
8504 252 8680571
1746581 1887571
41133483 36 982 146
- 629 751
644 068 5383 585
459 951 188 452 438 046
(17 482 992) (9 019 796)



ROWEND
matzi


MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Balance on 30 June 2021
Correction of error restatement - note 46.3

Balance on 30 June 2021 - Restated
Net Deficit for the year

Balance on 30 June 2022 - Restated
Net Deficit for the year

Balance on 30 June 2023

ACCUMULATED
SURPLUS TOTAL
R R

653 259 199 653 259 199

18 905 768 18 905 768
672 164 967 672 164 967

(9 019 795) (9019 795)
663 145 172 663 145 172
(17 482 988) (17 482 988)
645 662 184 645 662 184
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Property Rates

Service Charges and Interest
Other Revenue and Receipts
Government Grants
Investment Interest

Payments

Suppliers and employees
Finance charges
Transfers and Grants

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Payments

Purchase of Capital Assets

NET CASH USED INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments

Loans repaid

NET CASH USED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

2023 2022
R R
Notes (Actual) (Restated)

45682 779 48 400 604
187 083 457 185 686 577
16 990 302 16 702 461
138 449 132 146 932 135
1398 999 780 068
(333 598 754) (313177 211)
(10 926 598) (4 069 959)
(1746 581) (1887571)
47 43 332 736 79 367 105
3837093 545 739
(45 178 470) (70 893 496)
(41 341 377) (70 347 757)
(3820 704) (3937 137)
(3 820 704) (3937 137)
(1 829 345) 5082 211
20338 468 15 256 258
18 509 123 20338 468
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL Vs
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
R R R R R

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash 10361 377 9762136 20123513 18 509 123 (1614 390)
Consumer debtors 54 055 639 (24 060 443) 29995 195 29 084 136 (911 059)
Other Receivables 17 845 433 (493 083) 17 352 350 25292 961 7940610
Current portion of long-term receivables 808 518 346 404 1154923 1691015 536 092
Inventory 671 384 691 787 1363171 886 852 (476 319)
Total current assets 83 742 352 (13 753 199) 69 989 153 75 464 087 5474934
Non current assets
Long-term receivables 518 314 1297772 1816 086 1635 240 (180 846)
Investment property 56 109 762 29772738 85 882 500 96 087 100 10 204 600
Property, plant and equipment 836971213 (21714 299) 815256914 823 055 477 7 798 563
Intangible Assets 249 592 (80329) 169 262 112 650 (56 612)
Other non-current assets 2824 (2 824) - 56 676 56 676
Total non current assets 893 851 705 9273 058 903 124 762 920947 143 17 822 381
TOTAL ASSETS 977 594 056 (4480 141) 973 113 915 996 411 230 23 297 315
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Borrowing 3314054 49 593 839 52907 893 33762418 (19 145 475)
Consumer deposits - 10763 10763 - (10 763)
Trade and other payables 74 230973 (3173 821) 71057 152 118 879 051 47 821 899
Provisions and Employee Benefits 21769 257 (2 167 800) 19 601 457 17 468 481 (2132976)
Total current liabilities 99 314 284 44 262 981 143 577 265 170 109 950 26 532 685
Non current liabilities
Borrowing 7 785 280 68 101 991 75887 271 80 420 897 4533625
Provisions and Employee Benefits 142 936 419 (33770 235) 109 166 184 100 218 200 (8947 984)
Total non current liabilities 150 721 699 34 331 756 185 053 455 180 639 097 (4 414 359)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 250 035 983 78 594 737 328 630 720 350 749 046 22118 326
NET ASSETS 727 558 073 (83 074 878) 644 483 195 645 662 183 1178988
COMMUNITY WEALTH
Accumulated Surplus 727 558 073 (83074 878) 644 483 195 645 662 183 1178988
TOTAL COMMUNITY WEALTH/EQUITY 727 558 073 (83 074 878) 644 483 195 645 662 183 1178 988

Refer to note 49.2 for explanations of material variances.

Material variances are considered to be any variances greater than R4.5 million.
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE

Property Rates

Service Charges - Electricity Revenue
Service Charges - Water Revenue
Service Charges - Sanitation Revenue
Service Charges - Refuse Revenue
Rental of Facilities and Equipment
Interest Earned - External Investments
Interest Earned - Outstanding Debtors
Fines

Licences and Permits

Agency Services

Transfers Recognised - Operational
Other Revenue

Gains

Total Revenue (excluding capital transfers)

EXPENDITURE

Employee Related Costs
Remuneration of Councillors
Debt Impairment
Depreciation and Asset Impairment
Finance Charges

Bulk Purchases

Inventory Consumed
Contracted Services
Transfers and Grants

Other Expenditure

Losses

Total Expenditure

Surplus/(Deficit)

Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary) - Government
Transfers and subsidies - capital (monetary) - Other
Transfers and subsidies - capital (in-kind)

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Refer to note 49.3 for explanations of material variances.

ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL
APPROVED APPROVED FINAL Vs
BUDGET  ADJUSTMENTS  BUDGET VIREMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL  FINAL BUDGET
R R R R R R R
49 282 261 980 000 50 262 261 - 50262 261 49 549 692 (712 569)
163952702  (14837029) 149115673 - 149115673 135885957  (13229716)
33075792 2874855 35950 647 - 35 950 647 29371531 (6579 116)
23279712 1524 000 24 803 712 - 24803 712 24566 223 (237 489)
22325059 1298 000 23623 059 - 23623 059 23425201 (197 858)
2262128 (190 000) 2072128 - 2072128 1983 766 (88 362)
700 746 800 000 1500 746 - 1500 746 1418 787 (81 959)
4000 000 3400 000 7 400 000 - 7 400 000 7592133 192133
14509 871 (4260627) 10249244 - 10 249 244 10 365 793 116 549
1149332 (50 000) 1099 332 - 1099332 996 352 (102 980)
5073211 (350 000) 4723211 - 4723211 4155961 (567 250)
89 085 582 3595817 92 681 399 - 92 681 399 90 122 944 (2 558 455)
12491532 3676109 16 167 641 - 16 167 641 7668213 (8 499 428)
8 750 000 3500 000 12 250 000 - 12 250 000 13 863 823 1613 823
429 937 928 1961125 431899 053 - 431899053 400966377 (30932 676)
176 936 867 1047338 177984 205 - 177984205 171536470 (6 447 735)
7 906 252 (302 957) 7603 295 - 7603 295 7561198 (42 097)
22458 634 17 407 366 39 866 000 - 39 866 000 44525 563 4659 563
21405 913 7 000 000 28 405 913 - 28 405 913 25974389 (2431 524)
10 863 990 15 604 589 26 468 579 - 26 468 579 28 166 446 1697 867
124 835 000 (2800000) 122 035 000 - 122035000 121620623 (414 377)
17 685 062 4119 432 21804 494 - 21804 494 17 216 541 (4587 953)
11527 886 (326282) 11201604 - 11 201 604 8504 252 (2697 352)
1998 733 957 009 2955742 - 2955742 1746 581 (1209 161)
30107 325 5834072 35941397 - 35941 397 32394239 (3 547 158)
- 3527250 3527250 - 3527250 704 885 (2 822 365)
425 725 662 52067817 477793 478 - 477793479 459951188 (17 842291)
4212266  (50106692) (45 894 425) - (45894426) (58984 811) (13 090385)
36436 418 6894 645 43331063 - 43331063 39332475 (3 998 588)
- 2174344 2174344 - 2174344 2169 344 (5 000)
40648684 (41037 703) (389 018) - (389019)  (17482992) (17093 973)

Material variances are considered to be any variances greater than R4.5 million.
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

ACTUAL
ORIGINAL FINAL VS
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL BUDGET
R R R R R

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Property rates, penalties & collection charges 44 846 858 (113 445) 44733 412 45 682 779 949 367
Service charges 224 247 017 (16 444 052) 207 802 964 187 083 457 (20 719 507)
Other revenue 24 212 906 2 859 065 27071971 16 990 302 (10 081 669)
Government Grants 125522 000 26 872 228 152 394 228 138 449 132 (13 945 096)
Interest 4260 746 3826 000 8 086 746 1398 999 (6 687 747)
Payments
Suppliers and Employees (394 818 198) 19 248 291 (375 569 907) (333 598 754) 41971153
Finance Charges (3822 941) (13 503 589) (17 326 530) (10 926 598) 6399 931
Transfers and Grants (1998 733) (957 009) (2 955 742) (1746 581) 1209 161
Net Cash from/(used) Operating Activities 22 449 653 21787 489 44 237 143 43 332736 (904 407)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds on disposal of PPE 15 850 000 (5 100 000) 10 750 000 3837093 (6912 907)
Payments
Capital Assets (42 432 899) (7 763 814) (50 196 713) (45 178 470) 5018 243
Net Cash from/(used) Investing Activities (26 582 899) (12 863 814) (39 446 713) (41 341 377) (1 894 664)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Repayment of Borrowing (3 641 706) (1363 679) (5005 385) (3 820 704) 1184 681
Net Cash from/(used) Financing Activities (3 641 706) (1363 679) (5 005 385) (3820 704) 1184 681
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD (7 774 952) 7559 996 (214 955) (1 829 345) (1 614 390)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year begin 18 136 329 2202 140 20338 468 20338 468 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the year end 10361 377 9762136 20123513 18 509 123 (1614 390)

Refer to note 49.4 for explanations of material variances.

Material variances are considered to be any variances greater than R4.5 million.
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1.01

1.02

1.03

1.04

1.05

1.05.1

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost convention,
unless specified otherwise.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and effective

standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP), including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, (Act No 56 of 2003).

Accounting policies for material transactions, events or conditions not covered by the GRAP reporting framework, have been developed in
accordance with paragraphs 8, 10 and 11 of GRAP 3 and the hierarchy approved in Directive 5 issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset, except when offsetting is permitted or required by a Standard of GRAP.

The accounting policies applied are consistent with those used to present the previous year’s financial statements, unless explicitly stated
otherwise. The details of any changes in accounting policies are explained in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied except where an exemption has been granted, are
disclosed below.

TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

The Municipality resolved to take advantage of the following transitional provisions:

In terms of Directive 7 - "The Application of Deemed Cost on the Adoption of Standards of GRAP", the Municipality applied deemed cost to
Investment Property and Property, Plant and Equipment where the acquisition cost of an asset could not be determined.

PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in South African Rand, rounded off to the nearest Rand, which is the Municipality's functional currency.

GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Refer to note 64 for the going concern assessment performed by the
Municipality.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Prior year comparatives

When the presentation or classification of items in the financial statements are amended, prior period comparative amounts are restated,
unless a standard of GRAP does not require the restatements of comparative information. The nature and reason for the reclassification is

disclosed.

Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year, the correction is made
retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.

Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable, and the
prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
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1.05.2

1.06

1.07

1.08

1.08.1

1.08.1.1

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Amended Accounting Policies

Amendments to accounting policies are reported as and when deemed necessary based on the relevance of any such amendment to the
format and presentation of the financial statements.

No significant amendments were made to the accounting policy in the current year.

MATERIALITY

Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or collectively, influence the decision or assessments of
users made on the basis of the financial statements. Materiality depends on the nature or size of the omission or misstatements judged in the
surrounding circumstances. The nature or size of the information item, or a combination of both, could be the determining factor. Materiality
is determined as 1% of total actual operating expenditure. This materiality is from management's perspective and does not correlate with the
auditor's materiality.

Standards of GRAP set out how an item should be recognised, measured and disclosed in the financial statements. In some cases, the
Municipality does not recognise, measure, present or disclose information in accordance with the specific requirements outlined in the
Standards of GRAP if the effect of applying those requirements are immaterial.

BUDGET INFORMATION

Budget information is presented on the accrual basis and is based on the same fiscal period as the actual amounts.

The Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts includes the comparison between the approved and final budget amounts, as well
as a comparison between the actual amounts and final budget amounts.

The disclosure of comparative information in respect of the previous period is not required by the Standards of GRAP.

NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
Effective dates determined

Where a Standard of GRAP has been issued but is not yet effective, the Municipality may resolve to early adopt such a Standard of GRAP if an
effective date has been determined by the Minister of Finance.

The Municipality resolved to early adopt the following pronouncements to the Standards of GRAP which were issued but not yet effective:

Pronouncement Effective Date
Improvements to the Standards of GRAP (2020) 1 April 2023
Amendments to GRAP 1 on Presentation of Financial Statements (2019) 1 April 2023
iGRAP 21 on The Effect of Past Decisions on Materiality 1 April 2023

The effect of the above-mentioned pronouncements to the Standards of GRAP which were early adopted is considered insignificant. The early
adopted pronouncements mainly relate to the clarification of accounting principles.

The Municipality further resolved not to early adopt the following Standards of GRAP which was issued but is not yet effective:
GRAP 25 (Revised 2021) - Employee Benefits (effective 1 April 2023)

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits. This Standard was revised to align it with
IPSAS 39 on Employee Benefits.

The impact of this Standard on the financial statements will not be significant.
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1.08.1.2

1.08.1.3

1.08.2

1.08.2.1

1.08.2.2

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

GRAP 104 (Revised 2019) - Financial Instruments (effective 1 April 2025)

The objective of this Standard is to establish principles for recognising, measuring, presenting and disclosing financial instruments. This
Standard was revised to align it with IFRS 9 on Financial Instruments.

The impact of the revised Standard may be significant on the financial statements, due to the following key changes to the Standard:

(a) Changes in the classification of instruments for subsequent measurement — financial assets are measured at either amortised
cost or fair value based on the reason why they are held and their economic characteristics. Specific liabilities are measured at
fair value, and all others are measured at amortised cost.

(b) The approach to impairing financial assets changed from an incurred loss to an expected loss model. As indicated in the name,
expected losses estimate the expected default of financial assets over a period of time rather than only recognising an
impairment loss when an event occurs.

(c) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are recognised and measured differently. They are no longer in the scope
of GRAP 19 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. When entering into these transactions there is an
economic consequence that exposes an entity to risk. Accounting for them as financial instruments best captures this risk
exposure.

(d) With the changes in the classification of instruments and impairment approach, there is new information that GRAP 104
requires entities to disclose.

iGRAP 7 (Revised 2021) - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their interaction (effective 1 April 2023)

This Interpretation addresses the following:

(a) When refunds or reductions in future contributions should be regarded as available in accordance with the definition of the
asset ceiling.
(b) How a minimum funding requirement might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions.

No significant impact is expected as the Municipality’s current treatment is already to a large extent in line with the Interpretation's
requirements.

Effective dates not yet determined
Where a Standard of GRAP has been issued but not yet effective and the Minister of Finance has not yet determined an effective date for
application, the Municipality may select to apply the principles established in that standard in developing an appropriate accounting policy

dealing with a particular section or event.

The following Standards of GRAP have been issued but are not yet effective as the Minister of Finance has not yet determined the effective
date for application:

GRAP 103 (Revised 2022) - Heritage Assets

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting treatment for heritage assets and related disclosure requirements.

This revised Standard may have a significant impact with regards to heritage assets which have a dual purpose. Even though some heritage
assets can have cultural significance while being used in delivering services, the revised Standard will now require that all heritage assets be
accounted for using GRAP 103. A consequence of this amendment is that a heritage asset will no longer be depreciated. Instead, a heritage
asset should be tested for impairment when an impairment indicator has been triggered.

Amendments to GRAP 1 on Presentation of Financial Statements (2022)

The amendments to the Standard clarifies how to apply going concern assumption in the public sector and improve disclosure on related
judgements and conclusions.

The impact of these amendments to the Standard on the financial statements will not be significant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Initial Recognition

Investment property includes property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both land and buildings held under a finance lease) held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, rather than held to meet service delivery objectives, the production or supply of goods or services,
for administration purposes, or the sale of an asset in the ordinary course of operations. Property with a currently undetermined use, is also
classified as investment property.

Investment property is recognised as an asset when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are associated
with the investment property will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially measured at cost on its acquisition date. The cost of investment property is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the asset to a condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Municipality.

Where an investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition
and any other costs attributable to bring the asset to a condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Municipality. The cost of self-constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion. Transfers are made to or from investment
property only when there is a change in use.

Where investment property is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-
monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not determinable, its
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

Subsequent Measurement — Fair Value Model
Investment property is measured using the fair value model. Under the fair value model, investment property is carried at its fair value at the
reporting date. Any gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of the property is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance

for the period in which it arises.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value to owner-occupied property or inventories, the property’s deemed cost is its fair
value at the date of change in use.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property that will be carried at fair value, any differences between the carrying amount
of the property and its fair value is treated in the same way as a revaluation in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and

Equipment.

For a transfer from inventories to investment property that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the property
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairment
Investment property is reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the carrying value over the
recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

An investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period of the retirement or
disposal.

Compensation from third parties for items of investment property that were impaired, lost or given up is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance when the compensation becomes receivable.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Initial Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one year.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service
potential associated with the item will flow to the Municipality, and the cost or fair value of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost on its acquisition date. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. The cost also includes
the necessary costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost is deemed to be equal to the fair value of that asset as at date of
acquisition and any other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by the Municipality.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not

determinable, its deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent Measurement - Cost Model

Subsequent to initial recognition, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

Where the Municipality replaces parts of an asset, it derecognises the part of the asset being replaced and capitalises the new component.
Subsequent expenditure incurred on an asset is capitalised when it increases the capacity or future economic benefits or service potential
associated with the asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Municipality. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
depreciation charge for each period is recognised in Statement of Financial Performance, unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.

The depreciation method is reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
At each reporting date the Municipality assesses whether there is any indication that expectations about the residual value and the useful life

of an asset may have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the expected residual value and useful life are
revised and the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

The annual depreciation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

YEARS YEARS
Land and Buildings Community
Land Infinite Community Facilities 10-100
Buildings 10 - 100 Sport and Recreational Facilities 15-100
Work in Progress N/A Work in progress N/A
Infrastructure
Roads and Storm Water 15 - 100 Other
Electricity 5-80 Computer Equipment 5-17
Water Supply 15 -100 Furniture and Office Equipment 6-22
Sanitation 10 - 100 Machinery and Equipment 6-34
Solid Waste 10 - 100 Transport Assets 6-24
Work in Progress N/A
Finance lease assets
Furniture and Office Equipment 2-5

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the carrying value over
the recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no further economic benefits or service
potential expected from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the compensation becomes receivable.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial Recognition

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

The Municipality recognises an intangible asset only when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Municipality and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost on its acquisition date. The cost of an intangible asset is the purchase price and other costs
attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
Municipality. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost is measured at its fair value at the date of acquisition
and any other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by the Municipality.

Where an intangible asset is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of monetary and non-
monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value is not determinable, its
deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Internally generated intangible assets are subject to a strict recognition criteria before they are capitalised. Research expenditure is never
capitalised, while development expenditure is only capitalised to the extent that:

) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

) its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
(c) its ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;

) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and
(f) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Subsequent Measurement - Cost Model
Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairments losses.
Amortisation

The cost of an intangible asset is amortised over the useful life where that useful life is finite. Where the useful life is indefinite, the asset is not
amortised but is still subject to an annual impairment test.

Amortisation of an intangible with a finite life asset begins when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Municipality. Amortisation ceases at the date that the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets.
The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in Statement of Financial Performance, unless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.

The residual value of an intangible asset with a finite useful life is considered to be zero.

The amortisation period and amortisation method are reviewed at each reporting date, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

The annual amortisation rates are based on the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Computer Software 2-15
Rights (Servitudes) Indefinite

Impairment
Intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date for any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated. The impairment recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance is the excess of the carrying value over the
recoverable amount.

An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of an impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed or when there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected
from the use of the asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-MONETARY ASSETS

An impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the loss
of the asset’s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation.

Cash-generating assets are assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. Non-cash-generating assets are assets
other than cash-generating assets.

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Municipality estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Recoverable amount of Cash-generating assets
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The best evidence of fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be derived from the continuing use
of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Recoverable amount of Non-cash-generating assets

The recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

The value in use for a non-cash generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. Fair value less costs to sell is the
amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Impairment loss

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

An impairment loss of assets carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard of GRAP is treated as a revaluation decrease in
accordance with that Standard of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impairment loss

The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at a revalued amount in accordance with another Standard of GRAP is treated as a
revaluation increase in accordance with that Standard of GRAP.

After the reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's
revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.
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INVENTORIES
Initial Recognition

Inventories are assets:

(a) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;

(b) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services;
(c) held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or

(d) in the process of production for sale or distribution.

Inventories are recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to
the Municipality, and the cost of the inventories can be measured reliably.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost. Cost generally refers to the purchase price, plus non-recoverable taxes, transport costs and any
other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted in

determining the costs of purchase.

Where inventory is manufactured, constructed or produced, the cost includes the cost of labour, materials and overheads used during the
manufacturing process.

Where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost is measured at the fair value as at the date of acquisition plus
any other costs in bringing the inventories to their current location and condition.

Subsequent Measurement
When inventories are sold, exchanged or distributed the carrying amount of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expense is recognised when the goods are distributed, or related

service is rendered.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value unless they are to be distributed at no or nominal charge, in which case they
are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. Current replacement cost is the cost the Municipality would incur to acquire the

asset on the reporting date.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost and all losses of inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

The basis of allocating cost to inventory items is the first-in-first-out method.

At reporting date, the water volume is determined by way of dip readings and the calculated volume in the distribution network. Water
inventory is then measured by multiplying the cost per kilo litre of purified water by the amount of water in storage.

Cost of land held for sale is assigned by using specific identification of their individual costs.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined-contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Municipality pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a
fund), and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of
retirement benefits are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance in the year during which they become payable.

Defined-benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans.
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Post-Retirement Benefits

The Municipality provides retirement benefits for its employees and councillors. Retirement benefits consist of defined-contribution plans and
defined-benefit plans.

Multi-employer defined benefit plans

The Municipality contributes to various National- and Provincial-administered defined benefit plans on behalf of its qualifying employees.
These funds are multi-employer funds. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance in the year they become payable. These defined benefit funds are actuarially valued on the projected unit
credit method basis. Deficits are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis from all
participating municipalities.

Post Retirement Medical Benefits

The Municipality provides post-retirement medical benefits by subsidizing the medical aid contributions of certain retired staff according to the
rules of the medical aid funds. Council pays 60% as contribution and the remaining 40% is paid by the members. The entitlement to these
benefits is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service period. The
present value of the defined benefit liability is actuarially determined. The plan is unfunded.

Contributions are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when employees have rendered the service entitling them to the
contribution. The liability is calculated by means of the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. The liability in respect of current
pensioners is regarded as fully accrued, and is therefore not split between a past (or accrued) and future in-service element. The liability is
recognised at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets
(if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly, plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirements.
Payments made by the Municipality are set-off against the liability, including notional interest, resulting from the valuation by the actuaries and
are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits upon valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Long-term Benefits
Long Service Awards
Long service awards are provided to employees who achieve certain pre-determined milestones of service within the Municipality. The
Municipality’s obligation under these plans is valued by independent qualified actuaries annually and the corresponding liability is raised.

Payments are set-off against the liability, including notional interest, resulting from the valuation by the actuaries and are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance as employee benefits upon valuation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions, is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance in the period that it occurs. These obligations are valued annually by independent qualified actuaries.

Short-term Benefits
Staff Leave

Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The liability is based on the total amount of leave days due to
employees at reporting date and also on the total remuneration package of the employee.

Accumulating leave is carried forward and can be used in future periods if the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. All unused leave
will be paid out to the specific employee at the end of that employee’s employment term. Accumulated leave is vesting.

Bonuses

The liability for staff bonuses is based on the accrued bonus for each employee at reporting date.

Page 20



ROWEND
matzi


1.14.3.3

1.15

1.16

1.16.1

1.16.1.1

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
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Provision for Performance Bonuses

A provision, in respect of the liability relating to the anticipated costs of performance bonuses payable to Section 57 employees, is recognised
as it accrue to Section 57 employees. Provisions are based on the employment contract stipulations as well as previous performance bonus
payment trends.

PROVISIONS

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised when the Municipality has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the provision can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate of future outflows of resources. Where the effect is
material, non-current provisions are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects the market’s current assessment of
the time value of money, adjusted for risks specific to the liability.

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is sufficient
objective evidence that they will occur. Gains from the expected disposal of assets are not taken into account in measuring a provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. The present obligation under an onerous contract is recognised and measured as a
provision.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement is
recognised when it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Municipality settles the obligation. The reimbursement is
treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement will not exceed the amount of the provision. In the Statement of
Financial Performance, the expense relating to a provision may be presented net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised only when the following criteria over and above the recognition criteria of a provision have
been met:

(a) The Municipality has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:
. the business or part of a business concerned;
3 the principal locations affected;
. the location, function and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their
services;
3 the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
. when the plan will be implemented.
(b) The Municipality has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement

that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the

obligation, the provision is derecognised.

LEASES

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Municipality as Lessee

Finance Leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Municipality recognises assets acquired under finance leases as assets and the associated lease
obligations as liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position.
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At the inception of the lease, the assets and liabilities are recognised at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The discount rate to be used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payment is the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If the rate implicit to the lease is not available the Municipality's incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct
costs of the Municipality are added to the amount recognised as an asset.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge are allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents, if any, are charged as expenses to the Statement of Financial Performance in the
periods in which they are incurred. The leased assets are accounted for in accordance with the stated accounting policies applicable to the
assets.

Operating leases

Lease payment under an operating lease is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over
lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit. The difference between the
straight-lined expenses and actual payments made will give rise to a liability.

Municipality as Lessor
Finance Leases

The Municipality recognises lease payments receivable under a finance lease as assets (receivable) in the Statement of Financial Position. The
asset (receivable) is calculated as the sum of all the minimum lease payments to be received, plus any unguaranteed residual accruing to the
Municipality, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The asset (receivable) is reduced by the capital portion of the lease instalments received, with the interest portion being recognised as interest
revenue on a time proportionate basis in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Operating Leases

Operating lease revenue is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease,
unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. The
difference between the straight-lined revenue and actual payments received will give rise to an asset.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Initial Recognition

Financial instruments (financial assets and financial liabilities) are recognised on the Municipality's Statement of Financial Position when it
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. If finance charges in respect of financial
assets and financial liabilities are significantly different from similar charges usually obtained in an open market transaction, adjusted for the
specific risks of the Municipality, such differences are immediately recognised in the period it occurs, and the unamortised portion adjusted
over the period of the loan transactions.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial instruments are categorised as follow:

(a) Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets or current liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12
months, which are classified as non-current. After initial recognition, both financial assets and financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Financial assets are also subject to an impairment review.

(b) Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Both financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
cost. Financial assets are subject to an impairment review.
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(c) Financial instruments at fair value comprise of financial assets or financial liabilities that are:
(i) derivatives;
(ii) combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
(iii) instruments held for trading;
(iv) non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated
at fair value at initial recognition; or
(v) financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial

instruments at cost.

Both, financial assets and financial liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised directly in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each reporting date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence of impairment of financial assets.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Cash flows relating to short-term
financial assets are not discounted where the effect of discounting is immaterial. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment is reversed by adjusting an allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in Statement of Financial Performance.

Financial assets measured at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not measured at fair
value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses is not be reversed.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

The Municipality derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. Financial assets (receivables) are also
derecognised when Council approves the write-off of financial assets due to non-recoverability.

If the Municipality neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Municipality recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Municipality retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Municipality continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

The Municipality derecognises financial liabilities when the Municipality's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

The Municipality recognises the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or

transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

STATUTORY RECEIVABLES

Statutory receivables arise from legislation, supporting regulations, or similar means and require settlement by another entity in cash or
another financial asset. Statutory receivables can arise from both exchange and non-exchange transactions.

Initial Recognition

Statutory receivables are recognised when the related revenue (exchange or non-exchange revenue) is recognised or when the receivable
meets the definition of an asset. The Municipality initially measure statutory receivables at their transaction amount.

Subsequent Measurement

The Municipality measures statutory receivables after initial recognition using the cost method. Under the cost method, the initial
measurement of the receivable is subsequently changed to reflect any interest or other charges that may have accrued on the receivable, less
any impairment losses and amounts derecognised.

Impairment and uncollectability of statutory receivables
The Municipality assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a statutory receivable may be impaired.

If there is an indication that a statutory receivable may be impaired, the Municipality measures the impairment loss as the difference between
the estimated future cash flows and the carrying amount. Where the carrying amount is higher than the estimated future cash flows, the
carrying amount of the statutory receivable is reduced, through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance. In estimating the future cash flows, the Municipality considers both the amount and timing of the cash
flows that it will receive in future. Consequently, where the effect of the time value of money is material, the Municipality discounts the
estimated future cash flows using a rate that reflects the current risk free rate and any risks specific to the statutory receivable for which the
future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a statutory receivable is revised if there has been a change in the estimates used since the
last impairment loss was recognised, or to reflect the effect of discounting the estimated cash flows. Any previously recognised impairment
loss is adjusted by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of any adjustment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Derecognition

The Municipality derecognises a statutory receivable when the rights to the cash flows from the receivable are settled, expire or are waived or
the Municipality transfers the receivable and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable to another entity.

When the Municipality, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the receivable, has transferred control of
receivable to another entity, the Municipality derecognises the receivable and recognises separately any rights and obligations created or
retained in the transfer.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes cash on hand, cash held with banks, and call deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments with registered
banking institutions with maturities of three months or less from inception, readily convertible to cash without significant change in value.

Bank overdrafts are recorded based on the facility utilised. Finance charges on bank overdraft are expensed as incurred in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of any bank
overdrafts. 3

Page 24



ROWEND
matzi


1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.24.1

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value, which approximates amortised cost less provision for impairment. Amounts receivable within
12 months from the date of reporting are classified as current.

A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Municipality will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. An estimate is made for impairment of receivables, based on past default
experience of all outstanding amounts at reporting date.

Bad debts are written off in the year during which they are identified as irrecoverable, subject to the approval by the appropriate delegated
authority. When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the Statement of Financial Performance.

TAXES (VALUE ADDED TAX)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amounts of value added tax. The net amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from, or
payable to, the taxation authority is included in the Statement of Financial Position. The Municipality accounts for value-added tax (VAT) on the
payment basis.

PAYABLES AND ANNUITY LOANS

Payables and annuity loans are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest rate,
which is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.

CONDITIONAL GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised as assets when the resources that have been transferred to the
Municipality meet the definition and criteria for recognition as assets.

Conditional grants, transfers and donations are recognised as revenue to the extent that the Municipality has complied with the conditions
embodied in the agreement. Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other future economic benefits or service
potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the transferor, a liability is recognised to the extent
that the conditions have not been met. Where such requirements are not enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the
transferor has never enforced the requirement to return the transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when
breaches have occurred, the stipulation will be considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue.

The liability recognised to the extent that the conditions associated with the grant, transfer or donation have not been met, always has to be
cash-backed. The cash which backs up the liability is invested as a individual investment or part of the general investments of the Municipality
until it is utilised.

Interest earned on investments of grants, transfers and donations are treated in accordance with conditions as stipulated in the agreement. If
it is payable to the grantor it is recorded as part of the creditor and if it is the Municipality’s interest it is recognised as interest earned in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

REVENUE

At the time of initial recognition, the full amount of revenue is recognised where the Municipality has an enforceable legal obligation to collect,
unless the Municipality has no intention of collecting this revenue. Where the Municipality has no intention of collecting the revenue, rebates
and discounts are offset against the related revenue. If the Municipality does not successfully enforce its obligation to collect the revenue this
would be considered a subsequent event.

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to transactions where the Municipality received revenue from another entity without directly
giving approximately equal value in exchange.

Revenue from non-exchange transactions is generally recognised to the extent that the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition as
an asset and there is no liability to repay the amount. ;
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Taxation Revenue

Taxation revenue comprises of property rates. Revenue from property rates is recognised when the legal entitlement to this revenue arises.
Collection charges are recognised when such amounts are legally enforceable. Penalty interest on unpaid rates is recognised on a time
proportion basis with reference to the principal amount receivable and effective interest rate applicable. A composite rating system charging
different rate tariffs is employed. Rebates are granted to certain categories of ratepayers and are deducted from revenue.

Transfer Revenue

Grants, transfers and donations received or receivable are recognised when the resources that have been transferred, meet the criteria for
recognition as an asset. A corresponding liability is recognised to the extent that the grant, transfer or donation is conditional. The liability is
transferred to revenue as and when the conditions attached to the grant are met.

Grants, transfers and donations without any conditions attached are recognised as revenue when the asset is recognised.

Availability Charges

Availability charges are based on the approved tariffs of the Municipality. These charges are levied where the Municipality has installed the
relevant infrastructure networks (relating to water, electricity, sewerage and solid waste) in the area where the consumer resides, but the
consumer has not requested to be and is not connected to the networks.

Fines

Fine Revenue constitutes both spot fines and summonses. All fines issued during the year less any cancellations or reductions are recognised as
revenue.

Insurance Refund

Revenue from third parties i.e. insurance payments for assets impaired, are recognised when it can be measured reliably and is not being offset
against the related expenses of repairs or renewals of the impaired assets.

Unclaimed deposits

All unclaimed deposits are initially recognised as a liability until 36 months expires, when all unclaimed deposits into the Municipality’s bank
account will be treated as revenue. This policy is in line with prescribed debt principle as enforced by law.

Revenue from Recovery of Unauthorised, Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

Income from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated procedures, including those set
out in the MFMA (Act 56 of 2003), and is recognised upon the recovery thereof from the responsible party.

Services in-kind

Services in-kind include services provided by individuals to the Municipality at no charge or where the Municipality has the right to use assets
at no charge.

The Municipality's recognises services in-kind that are significant to its operations as assets and recognises the related revenue when it is
probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the Municipality and the fair value of the assets can be measured
reliably.

When the criteria for recognition is satisfied, services in-kind are recognised at their fair value as at the date of acquisition.

If the services in-kind are not significant to the Municipality’s operations or does not satisfy the criteria for recognition, the Municipality only
disclose the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period.

Contributed Assets

Contributed assets are recognised at fair value when such items of property, plant and equipment qualifies for recognition and become
available for use by the Municipality.
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Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Municipality directly in return for services rendered or goods sold,
the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable.

Service Charges

Service Charges are levied in terms of approved tariffs.

Service charges relating to electricity and water are based on consumption and a basic charge as per the approved tariffs. Meters are read on a
monthly basis and are recognised as revenue when invoiced. Where the Municipality was unable to take the actual month's reading of certain
consumers, a provisional estimate of consumption for that month will be created, based on consumption history. The provisional estimates of
consumption are recognised as revenue when invoiced, except at reporting date when estimates of consumption up to the reporting date are
recorded as revenue without being invoiced. Adjustments to provisional estimates of consumption are made in the invoicing period in which

meters have been read. These adjustments are recognised as revenue in the invoicing period. In respect of estimates of consumption
between the last reading date and the reporting date, an accrual is made based on the average monthly consumption of consumers.

Revenue from the sale of electricity prepaid meter cards is recognised at the point of sale. An adjustment is made at year-end for unused units.
The pre-paid electricity sold, but not consumed yet at reporting date is recognised as a liability under Payables from Exchange Transactions in
the Statement of Financial Position.

Service charges relating to sewerage and sanitation are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each
property. These service charges are based on the type of service and the number of sewer connections on all developed property, using the
tariffs approved and are levied on a monthly basis.

Service charges relating to refuse removal are recognised on a monthly basis in arrears by applying the approved tariff to each property that
has improvements. Tariffs are determined per category of property usage, and are levied monthly based on the number of refuse containers
on each property, regardless of whether or not all containers are emptied during the month.

Interest earned

Interest earned on investments is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance on the time proportionate basis that takes into
account the effective yield on the investment.

Rental income
Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease agreement.
Income from Agency Services

Revenue arising out of situations where the Municipality acts as an agent on behalf of another entity (the principal) is limited to the amount of
any fee or commission payable to the Municipality as compensation for executing the agreed services.

Income from agency services is recognised on a monthly basis once the income collected on behalf of agents has been quantified. The income
recognised is in terms of the agency agreement.

Other Tariffs

Revenue arising from the application of the approved tariff of charges is recognised when the relevant service is rendered by applying the
relevant tariff. This includes the issuing of licences and permits.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are satisfied:

(a) The Municipality has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

(b) The Municipality retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold.

(c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(d) It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Municipality.

(e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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Deferred payment

In most cases, the consideration is in the form of cash or cash equivalents and the amount of revenue is the amount of cash or cash equivalents
received or receivable. However, when the inflow of cash or cash equivalents is deferred, the fair value of the consideration may be less than
the nominal amount of cash received or receivable. When the arrangement effectively constitutes a financing transaction, the fair value of the
consideration is determined by discounting all future receipts using an imputed rate of interest.

The difference between the fair value and the nominal amount of the consideration is recognised as interest revenue.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are incurred by the Municipality are expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance in the period during which they
are incurred, regardless of how the borrowings are applied.

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

Unauthorised expenditure is expenditure that has not been budgeted, expenditure that is not in terms of the conditions of an allocation
received from another sphere of government, municipality or organ of state and expenditure in a form of a grant that is not permitted in terms
of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003). Unauthorised expenditure is accounted for as an expense (measured at actual
cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of
Financial Performance.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No. 56 of 2003), the Municipal Systems Act
(Act No. 32 of 2000), the Public Office Bearers Act, and (Act. No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Municipality’s Supply Chain
Management Policy. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure (measured at actual cost incurred) in the Statement of Financial
Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Municipality. A contingent liability could also be a
present obligation that arises from past events, but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measures with sufficient reliability.

Contingent assets represent possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by an occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Municipality.

The Municipality does not recognise a contingent liability or contingent asset. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote. A contingent asset is disclosed where the inflow of
economic benefits or service potential is probable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments disclosed in the financial statements represents the contractual balance committed to capital projects on reporting date
that will be incurred in the period subsequent to the specific reporting date.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date when
the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
(b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

If non-adjusting events after the reporting date are material, the Municipality discloses the nature and an estimate of the financial effect.

RELATED PARTIES

A related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise significant influence over the
other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control.

Related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Municipality and a related party, regardless of whether
a price is charged.

Management is considered a related party and comprises those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Municipality, including those charged with the governance of the Municipality in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are
required to perform such functions.

A close family member of management is also considered to be related party. A person is considered to be a close member of the family of
another person if they are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage or are separated by no more than two degrees of
natural or legal consanguinity or affinity.

The Municipality is exempt from the disclosure requirements in relation to related party transactions if that transactions occurs within the
normal supplier and/or client/recipient relationship on terms and conditions no more or less favourable than those which it is reasonable to
expect the Municipality to have adopted if dealing with that individual entity or person in the same circumstances, and the terms and
conditions are within the normal operating parameters established by Municipality's legal mandate.

Where the Municipality is exempt from the disclosures in accordance with the above-mentioned paragraph, the Municipality discloses
narrative information about the nature of the transactions and the related outstanding balances, to enable to users of the financial statements
to understand the effect of related party transactions.

Remuneration of management includes remuneration derived for services provided to the Municipality in their capacity as members of the
management team or employees. Benefits derived directly or indirectly from the Municipality for services in any capacity other than as an
employee or a member of management do not meet the definition of remuneration. Remuneration of management excludes any
consideration provided solely as a reimbursement for expenditure incurred by those persons for the benefit of the Municipality.

The Municipality operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
government. As a result of the Constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only parties within the same
sphere of government will be considered to be related parties. Only transactions with such parties which are not at arm’s length and not on
normal commercial terms, are disclosed.

ACCOUNTING BY PRINCIPAL AND AGENTS

An agent is an is an entity that has been directed another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benefit of the principal.

A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with third parties on its
behalf and for its own benefit.

A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with third parties on
behalf, and for the benefit of, another entity (the principal).
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When the Municipality is party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in accounting for revenue,
expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in terms of the arrangement. The assessment of
whether the Municipality is a principal or an agent requires the Municipality to assess whether the transactions it undertakes with third parties
are for the benefit of another entity or for its own benefit.

The Municipality assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties established in the
binding arrangement.

Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modified, the parties to the arrangement shall re-assess whether they act as a principal or an
agent in accordance with this Standard.

When the Municipality in a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the benefit of another
entity, then it is the agent. If an entity concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the transactions.

The Municipality is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:

(a) It does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the transaction.
(b) It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its own benefit.
(c) It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.

Where the Municipality has been granted specific powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of particular transactions, it
is not required to consider the criteria od whether it does not have the power to determine the significant terms and conditions of the
transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The Municipality applies judgement in determining whether such powers exist and whether they are
relevant in assessing whether an entity is an agent.

Where the Municipality acts as a principal, it recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a principal-
agent arrangement in accordance with the requirement of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

Where the Municipality acts as an agent, it recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the
transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.

The Municipality recognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the requirements of other
Standards of GRAP.
LIVING AND NON-LIVING RESOURCES

Living resources are those resources that undergo biological transformation which comprises the processes of growth, degeneration,
production, and procreation that cause qualitative or quantitative changes in a living resource.

Non-living resources are those resources, other than living resources, that occur naturally and have not been extracted. Non-living resources,
other than land, is not recognised as assets. The Standard only requires disclosure of the relevant resources.

The Municipality has assessed that it does not control any living resources, but is however responsible for non-living resources as set out in
notes to the financial statements.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is an activity of the Municipality:

(a) that generates economic benefits or service potential (including economic benefits or service potential relating to transactions
between activities of the same Municipality);

(b) whose results are regularly reviewed by management to make decisions about resources to be allocated to that activity and in
assessing its performance; and

(c) for which separate financial information is available.

Management comprises of those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Municipality, including those
charged with the governance of the Municipality in accordance with legislation.

Page 30



ROWEND
matzi


1.36

1.36.1

1.36.2

1.36.3

1.36.4

MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Financial information relating to the reporting segments are aligned to the financial information distributed to management on a regular basis
(similar basis of preparation). This information is utilised to measure performance of the relevant services provided by the Municipality and
also to ensure that resources are appropriately allocated to various departments/segments to provide high quality services to the community.

Adjustments and eliminations made in preparing the Municipality’s financial statements, which includes the allocation basis of revenues and
expenses, are prepared on a similar basis as the information distributed to management on a regular basis.

Financial information distributed to management does not include a segment/department analysis of assets and liabilities associated with each
segment/department. In line with this principle utilised during the financial year, the segment reporting included in the financial statements
are prepared on a similar basis which excludes such an analysis. Assets and liabilities are reported on for the Municipality as a whole.

Management reviews capital expenditure/performance on a regular basis and accordingly the relevant information is reported on per segment.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the process of applying the Municipality’s accounting policy, management has made the following significant accounting judgements,
estimates and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Application of Directive 7

For deemed cost applied to Property, Plant and Equipment as per adoption of Directive 7, management used the depreciation cost method
which was based on assumptions about the remaining duration of the assets.

For deemed cost applied to land and buildings as per adoption of Directive 7, management made use of on independent valuator. The
valuator's valuation was based on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration of the assets.

For deemed cost applied to Investment Property as per adoption of Directive 7, management made use of on independent valuator. The
valuator's valuation was based on assumptions about the market's buying and selling trends and the remaining duration of the assets.

GRAP implementation date for the Municipality is 1 July 2009 which is also the date applicable when applying Directive 7. The GRAP compliant
period is therefore determined to be from 1 July 2009 to the current year's reported date. Where the economic useful life of an items of
Property, Plant and Equipment is less than the GRAP compliant period, it is assumed that the item was either incorrectly written off in the past,
or that the capital expenditure of the said item was incorrectly included in surplus. In such cases the item shall not be recognised on GRAP
implementation date, but shall be taken into account on that date of the opening balances of the comparative amounts.

Impairment of Receivables

The calculation in respect of the impairment of receivables is based on an assessment of the extent to which debtors have defaulted on
payments already due, and an assessment of their ability to make payments based on their creditworthiness. This was performed per service-
identifiable categories across all classes of debtors.

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives of assets are based on management’s estimates. Management considers the impact of technology, availability of capital
funding, service requirements and required return on assets to determine the optimum useful life expectation, where appropriate.

The estimated residual values of assets are also based on management's judgement on whether the assets will be sold or used to the end of
their useful lives, and what their condition will be at that time.

Impairment of non-monetary assets

Non-monetary assets can include, but is not limited to, Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Intangible assets.

The Municipality is not a profit-oriented entity, as its primary objective is service delivery. Tariffs and charges are cost-reflective to ensure
continued financial sustainability. No profit element is included in the determination of a tariff. As such, management has determined that the

Municipality does not control assets that meet the definition of cash-generating assets and that the Standard of GRAP on Impairment of Non-
cash-generating Assets will apply to all assets of the Municipality.
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MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

The calculation in respect of the impairment of non-monetary assets is based on an assessment of the extent to which the recoverable amount
of the asset has declined below the carrying amount. This calculation will only be performed if there is an indication of an impairment.

Post-Retirement and Long-term Benefits

The cost of post retirement medical benefits and long-service awards are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Management's judgement is required when recognising and measuring provisions, as well as when measuring contingent liabilities. Provisions
are discounted where the time value effect is material.

The provision for rehabilitation of the landfill site is recognised as and when the environmental liability arises. The provision is calculated by a
qualified environmental engineer. The provision represents the net present value at the reporting date of the expected future cash flows to
rehabilitate the landfill site. The discount rate used to calculate the effect of time value of money is linked to the index for earthwork as
published by Statistics South Africa.

Financial Instruments and Statutory Receivables

The Municipality analyses the terms and conditions of the transactions that give rise to its receivables in order to understand whether they
arise directly from legislation or similar means, or from a separate contract concluded with a party. Judgement is applied in applying the
principles as set out in the respective Standards of GRAP on Financial Instruments and Statutory Receivables.

Financial assets and liabilities

The classification of financial assets and liabilities, into categories, is based on judgement by management. In making the judgement,
management considered the definition and recognition criteria for the classification of financial instruments as set out in the Standard of GRAP
on Financial Instruments.

Revenue Recognition

Accounting Policy on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions and Accounting Policy on Revenue from Exchange Transactions describes the
conditions under which revenue will be recognised by management of the Municipality.

In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the recognition of revenue as prescribed in the Standard of GRAP
on Revenue from Exchange Transactions and Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions. Specifically, when goods are sold,
whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer and when services are rendered,
whether the service has been performed.

In considering the revenue to which the Municipality is entitled, the Municipality considers other factors that may impact the inflow of future
economic benefits or service potential on initial recognition of revenue. Such factors include fines issued which will be reduced or withdrawn
after reporting date. The Municipality applies judgement based on past experience and current facts and circumstances in order to adjust the
traffic fine revenue accordingly.

Recognition and Derecognition of Land

In order for land to be meet the definition of an asset, the Municipality must be able to prove that control is being exercised. Control of land is
evidenced by either legal ownership and/or the right to direct access to land, and to restrict or deny the access of others to land.

To demonstrate access/restriction rights, the Municipality assesses whether it has a substantive right for an unlimited period through a binding
arrangement.

The above-mentioned assessment is subject to management's judgements and assumptions are applied to conclude that the Municipality
controls land.
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Materiality

Since materiality is an entity-specific concept, its application may result in different outcomes based on the Municipality’s circumstances. The
assessment of materiality therefore requires management to apply judgement about:

(a) How information could reasonably be expected to influence the discharge of accountability by the Municipality or decisions
that the users make on the basis of those financial statements.
(b) How the nature or size or both, of the information could reasonably be expected to influence users’ decisions.

Water Inventory

The estimation of the water stock in the reservoirs is based on the measurement of water via electronic level sensors, where the level indicates
the depth of the water in the reservoir, which is then converted into volumes based on the total capacity of the relevant reservoir.
Furthermore, the length and width of all pipes are also taken into account in determining the volume of water on hand at year-end.

Pre-paid electricity

Pre-paid electricity is only recognised as income once the electricity is consumed. The prepaid electricity balance (included under payables)
represents the best estimate of electricity sold at year-end, which is still unused. The average pre-paid electricity sold per day during the year
under review is used, and the estimate is calculated using 5 days’ worth of unused electricity.

Componentisation Of Infrastructure Assets
All infrastructure assets are unbundled into their significant components in order to depreciate all major components over the expected useful

lives. The cost of each component is estimated based on the current market price of each component, depreciated for age and condition and
recalculated to cost at the acquisition date if known or to the date of initially adopting the standards of GRAP.
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022
2 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank Accounts 18 503 263 20 332 648
Cash Floats 5860 5820
Total 18 509 123 20338 468

Due to the short term nature of cash deposits, all balances included above are in line with their fair
values.

Cash and Cash Equivalents are held to support the following:

Unspent Conditional Government Grants - note 14 23597 614 14431 612
Unspent Public Contributions - note 15 612 415 612 415
VAT Payable - note 52.3 1516 842 1631243
Total 25726 871 16 675 270
Grant funding utilised for own working capital requirements 7217 748 -
Overdraft facilities available during the financial year with Standard Bank 25 000 000 15 000 000
Guarantee in favour of Eskom registered with Standard Bank (Account 082 451 885) 4580 815 -
Bank Accounts
ABSA Bank Limited - Account Number 40-5057-5029 (Former Primary Bank Account) - 51907
Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 451 885 (Primary Bank Account) 3417 746 2118 830
Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 452 024 (Grants) 10402 304 18 122 760
Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 455 333 (Housing) 4683213 39151
Total 18 503 263 20 332 648

Bank accounts consists out of the following accounts:

ABSA Bank Limited - Account Number 40-5057-5029 (Former Primary Bank Account)

Cash book balance at beginning of year 51907 754 328
Cash book balance at end of year - 51907
Bank statement balance at beginning of year 51907 754 328
Bank statement balance at end of year - 51907

Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 451 885 (Primary Bank Account)

Cash book balance at beginning of year 2118830 857243
Cash book balance at end of year 3417 746 2118 830
Bank statement balance at beginning of year 1503 340 406 040
Bank statement balance at end of year 2891942 1503 340

Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 452 024 (Grants)

Cash book balance at beginning of year 18 122 760 13 505 447
Cash book balance at end of year 10402 304 18 122 760
Bank statement balance at beginning of year 18 122 760 13 505 447
Bank statement balance at end of year 10402 304 18 122 760

Standard Bank Limited - Account Number 082 455 333 (Housing)

Cash book balance at beginning of year 39151 -
Cash book balance at end of year 4683213 39151
Bank statement balance at beginning of year 39151 -
Bank statement balance at end of year 4683213 39151
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022
3 RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Service Receivables

Electricity 15431 456 13504 020
Water 25348 794 19 757 852
Refuse 30020 222 24 131415
Sewerage 28 501 806 22 303 262
Other 19 489 400 13247 599
Interest 12 636 604 6256 993
Housing Selling Scheme 253013 258 205
Property Rental Debtors 620477 515159

Other Services 4313371 4592 434

Sundry Arrears 1665935 1624 808

Total Gross Balance 118 791 677 92 944 149
Less: Allowance for Debt Impairment (97 488 506) (72 402 942)
Total Net Receivable 21303171 20 541 207

Consumer debtors are payable within 30 days. This credit period granted is considered to be
consistent with the terms used in the public sector, through established practices and legislation.
Discounting of trade and other receivables on initial recognition is not deemed necessary. No
interest has been levied on outstanding accounts since the National State of Disaster was declared
in March 2020 until December 2022. Interest charged on outstanding accounts was approved by
council on 29 November 2022 and charged from 31 December 2022 at a rate of prime +1%.

Reconciliation of Allowance for Debt Impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year 72 402 942 62 804 934
Movement in the contribution to the provision 32 605 632 17 842 796
Electricity 1790194 513 367
Water 8 674 097 5468 583
Refuse 7 421 261 5787 446
Sewerage 8 062 892 6301 850
Other 6657 188 (228 450)
Bad Debts Written off (7 520 068) (8244 788)
Electricity (278 278) (278 575)
Water (2 509 508) (2 595 523)
Refuse (1837 053) (2 384 935)
Sewerage (2 156 223) (2483 270)
Other (739 006) (502 484)
Balance at the end of the year 97 488 506 72 402 942

The allowance for impairment of receivables has been made for all consumer balances outstanding
based on the payment ratio over the last 12 months. No allowance for debt impairment is made
for outstanding government debt. Based on these payment trends, management is satisfied that
no further credit provision is required in excess of the current allowance. The risk of non-payment
is further mitigated due to the large customer base over which the outstanding receivable balance

is spread.
Allowance for Debt
Gross Balance Impairment Net Receivable
R R R
30 June 2023
Service Receivables
Electricity 15 431 456 (4213 201) 11218 255
Water 25348 794 (22 584 323) 2764471
Refuse 30020 222 (26 624 011) 3396211
Sewerage 28 501 806 (25 436 028) 3065778
Other 19 489 400 (18 630 943) 858 456
Total 118 791 677 (97 488 506) 21303171 )

‘ -‘:)
Page 35


ROWEND
matzi


MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
3 RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Allowance for Debt
Gross Balance Impairment Net Receivable
R R R
30 June 2022
Service Receivables
Electricity 13 504 020 (2 701 285) 10 802 735
Water 19 757 852 (16 419 733) 3338119
Refuse 24 131 415 (21 039 802) 3091612
Sewerage 22303 262 (19 529 360) 2773903
Other 13 247 599 (12 712 761) 534 838
Total 92 944 149 (72 402 942) 20 541 207
Ageing of Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Electricity
Current (0 - 30 days) 8 626 590 8340881
31 - 60 Days 1851661 2111 255
61 - 90 Days 782 156 598 331
+ 90 Days 4171050 2 453553
Total 15 431 456 13 504 020
Water
Current (0 - 30 days) 2303704 2636341
31 - 60 Days 1128506 1452 482
61 - 90 Days 979 268 890 129
+ 90 Days 20937 316 14 778 900
Total 25348794 19 757 852
Refuse
Current (0 - 30 days) 2370015 2124224
31 - 60 Days 1345925 1250583
61 - 90 Days 1061 894 950 103
+ 90 Days 25242 388 19 806 504
Total 30020 222 24 131415
Sewerage
Current (0 - 30 days) 2373 696 2 069 278
31 - 60 Days 1418451 1328012
61 - 90 Days 1150593 1047 688
+ 90 Days 23 559 065 17 858 285
Total 28 501 806 22 303 262
Interest
Current (0 - 30 days) 1113814 9981
31 - 60 Days 1053 484 6 257
61 - 90 Days 990 330 6 335
+ 90 Days 9478 975 6234421
Total 12 636 604 6 256 993
Housing Selling Scheme
Current (0 - 30 days) 20 80
31 - 60 Days 31 78
61 - 90 Days 79 78
+ 90 Days 252 883 257 969
Total 253013 258 205

Page 36



ROWEND
matzi


MATZIKAMA LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 30 JUNE 2023

Figures in Rand 2023 2022
3 RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Property Rental Debtors

Current (0 - 30 days) 107 268 85458
31 - 60 Days 39 587 29 796
61 - 90 Days 40 156 23936
+ 90 Days 433 466 375970
Total 620477 515159

Other Services

Current (0 - 30 days) (22 841) 36 904
31 - 60 Days 1348 3 846
61 - 90 Days 1154 889
+ 90 Days 4333711 4 550 796
Total 4313 371 4592434
Sundry Arrears

Current (0 - 30 days) 87 152 111 020
31 - 60 Days 27 683 34 810
61 - 90 Days 20812 28471
+ 90 Days 1530288 1450507
Total 1665 935 1624 808

Summary Ageing of all Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Current (0 - 30 days) 16 959 419 15414 166
31 - 60 Days 6 866 676 6217118
61 - 90 Days 5026 442 3545961
+ 90 Days 89939 141 67 766 904
Total 118 791 677 92 944 149
4 RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Service Receivables 33 249 562 28133 834
Property Rates 26 361 987 23293 900
Availability Charges 6 887 575 4839935
Other Receivables 17 771 265 14 890 412
Unpaid Traffic Fines 15385 255 14282 521
Other Receivables 54122 165 832
Deposits 2 159 598 442 059
Unpaid Grants 172 289 -
Total Gross Balance 51 020 827 43 024 246
Less: Allowance for Debt Impairment (40 447 705) (34 035 105)
Total Net Receivable 10573 122 8989 142

Rates are payable monthly within 30 days after the date of accounts. An option to pay rates
annually is also available and the account must be settled on or before 30 September. This credit
period granted is considered to be consistent with the terms used in the public sector, through
established practices and legislation. Discounting of trade and other receivables on initial
recognition is not deemed necessary. No interest has been levied on outstanding accounts since
the National State of Disaster was declared in March 2020 until December 2022. Interest charged
on outstanding accounts was approved by council on 29 November 2022 and charged from 31
December 2022 at a rate of prime +1%.
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022
4 RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Allowance for Debt Impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year 34 035 105 57 889 771
Movement in the contribution to the provision 13937 529 13791671
Property Rates 4138 975 2376 084
Availability Charges 2127 439 2192317
Traffic Fines 7671115 9223271
Bad Debts Written off (7 524 929) (37 646 337)
Property Rates (798 826) (911 691)
Availability Charges (66 168) (35 615)
Traffic Fines (6 659 935) (36 699 031)
Balance at the end of the year 40 447 705 34 035 105

The allowance for debt impairment of property rates has been made for all balances outstanding
based on the payment ratio over the last 12 months. No allowance for debt impairment is made
for outstanding government debt. Based on these payment trends, management is satisfied that
no further credit provision is required in excess of the current allowance. The risk of non-payment
is further mitigated due to the large customer base over which the outstanding receivable balance
is spread.

The allowance for debt impairment of unpaid traffic fines has been made for all balances
outstanding based on the cumulative collection rate.
Allowance for Debt

Gross Balance Impairment Net Receivable
R R R
30 June 2023
Service Receivables
Property Rates 26 361 987 (18 948 074) 7 413913
Availability Charges 6 887 575 (6 520 523) 367 052
Other Receivables
Unpaid Traffic Fines 15 385 255 (14 979 108) 406 147
Other Receivables 54122 - 54122
Deposits 2159598 - 2159598
Unpaid Grants 172 289 - 172 289
Total 51 020 827 (40 447 705) 10573 122
30 June 2022
Service Receivables
Property Rates 23 293 900 (15 607 925) 7 685975
Availability Charges 4839935 (4 459 252) 380 682
Other Receivables
Unpaid Traffic Fines 14 282 521 (13967 928) 314 594
Other Receivables 165 832 - 165 832
Deposits 442 059 - 442 059
Total 43 024 246 (34 035 105) 8989 142
Ageing of Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Property Rates
Current (0 - 30 days) 3514070 3590744
31 - 60 Days 1403 547 1456 797
61 - 90 Days 860 141 902 670
+ 90 Days 20584 230 17 343 688
Total 26 361 987 23 293 900
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022

4 RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
Availability Charges
Current (0 - 30 days) 445 411 406 064
31 - 60 Days 268 344 280 283
61 - 90 Days 249 853 251267
+ 90 Days 5923968 3902322
Total 6 887 575 4839 935
Unpaid Traffic Fines
Current (0 - 30 days) 799 800 732 500
31 - 60 Days 801 550 789 100
61 - 90 Days 1406 100 625 350
+90 Days 12 377 805 12135571
Total 15 385 255 14 282 521

5 TAXES
VAT Claimable/(Payable) (2167 581) (1803 353)
VAT in Suspense 12 717 219 9607 745
VAT on Allowance for Debt Impairment 11951 166 9 095 948
Total 22 500 804 16 900 340
Reconciliation of VAT on Allowance for Debt Impairment
Balance at beginning of year 9 095 948 7 184618
Debt Impairment for current year 2855218 1911330
Balance at the end of the year 11 951 166 9095 948

6 OPERATING LEASES

6.1 OPERATING LEASE ASSETS

Operating Lease Asset 56 676 2824
Disclosed as follows:
Non-Current Operating Lease Asset 56 676 -
Current Operating Lease Asset - 2824
Total 56 676 2824
The operating lease asset is derived from contracts where the Municipality acts as the lessor in the
agreement.
Reconciliation of Operating Lease Asset
Balance at the beginning of the year 2824 3694
Movement during the year 53 852 (870)
Balance at the end of the year 56 676 2824
The Municipality will receive the following lease payments from contracts that have defined
lease payments and terms.
Within 1 Year 481 467 39 086
Between 1 and 5 Years 1500993 -

After 5 Years -

Total operating lease payments 1982 460
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022
6 OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

This lease income was determined from contracts that have a specific conditional income and does
not include lease income which has a undetermined conditional income.

The Municipality is leasing land and buildings to different lessees for periods ranging from 1 - 60
months with escalations linked to CPI or 5.5% per year ranging until 2028.
Significant lease agreements include, but are not limited to:

- Lease of various properties to the Department of Transport and Public Works for periods not
exceeding 5 years, with the last agreement ending 30 September 2027. These agreements have
an annual escalation of 5.5%.

- Lease of houses to employees. These agreements are reviewed annually.

The Municipality does not engage in any sub-lease arrangements nor did the Municipality receive
any contingent rent during the year.

7 LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES
Receivables with repayment arrangements 6575731 5664 192
Less: Allowance for Debt Impairment (3249 476) (2411 855)
Total Net Receivable 3326 255 3252337
Less: Current portion of Long-term Receivables (1691 015) (1489 147)
Total 1635 240 1763 190

Receivables subject to repayment arrangements are debtors which are repaying their outstanding
consumers accounts over a period of more than 12 months. There are no standard repayment
terms, therefore no age analysis is available for these non-current receivables.

Reconciliation of Allowance for Debt Impairment

Balance at the beginning of the year 2411 855 622 423
Movement in the contribution to the provision 837 620 1789432
Balance at the end of the year 3249476 2411 855

The allowance for debt impairment of arrangements has been made for all balances outstanding
based on the payment ratio over the last 12 months. Based on these payment trends,
management is satisfied that no further credit provision is required in excess of the current
allowance. The risk of non-payment is further mitigated due to the large customer base over which
the outstanding receivable balance is spread.

8 INVENTORY
Consumables 332020 570568
Water 554 832 560578
Total 886 852 1131146

Inventory are disclosed at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
No inventory were pledged as security for liabilities.

Inventory written down due to losses identified during the annual stores counts - -

Inventory recognised as an expense during the year

Consumables 623314 243 538
Finished Goods 133 008 93920
Water 8475 196 8296 498
Total 9231518 8 633 956
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Figures in Rand 2023 2022
9 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment Property - Fair Value 96 087 100 93 863 182
As previously reported 87 532 500
Correction of error restatement - note 46.1 6330 682
Restated balance 93 863 182
The carrying value